
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 1HD 

Friday, 27 May 2022 
 
To:  Members of the Planning & Transport Committee (Councillors A Dodwell, 
J Silverstone, C Palmer, D Bowater, G Perham, R Yates, M Freeman, S Owen, 
P Carberry and A Gray) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Planning & Transport Committee to 
be held on Wednesday, 8 June 2022 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, LU7 
1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i)  Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on the 

agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).  

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
Nos 3(f) and 3(g). 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


PLANNING & TRANSPORT COMMITTEE Wednesday, 8 June 2022 
 

 

 

 

4.   APPONTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2022-23  

 

5.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Planning 
and Transport Committee meeting held on 11 May 2022 (attached) in 
accordance with Standing Order 12.  

 
(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 

meeting (if appropriate). 
 

 

6.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 7 - 8) 

 

 To consider Planning Applications received (attached). An updated list will be 
issued on Wednesday, 1 June 2022 (if applicable).  
 
 
 

7.   TRANSPORT MATTERS (Pages 9 - 14) 

 

 (a)  Further to the request made by Council on 25 April 2022, to receive and 
consider suggestions from Buzzcycles in respect of how the town council could 
support the endorsed Cycling Strategy (attached). 
 
(b) To receive any updates arising from the resolutions passed by Council 
on 4 April 2022 in respect of:  
i. bus user liaison (report attached). 
ii. A505 bypass safety review by Central Bedfordshire Council. 
iii. Liaison with Central Bedfordshire Council on options for future High 
Street traffic management. 
 
(c) To consider any matters relating to highways/transport (if appropriate). 
 
 

8.   INFORMATION ITEMS (Pages 15 - 18) 

 

 (a) To receive information from the Central Bedfordshire Council website in 
respect of the Chiltern Beedwood zone of influence (attached).  

(b) To receive and consider any other items of information received (if 
applicable).  

 
* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



Page 167 

LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES OF PLANNING & TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY, 11 MAY 2022 AT 7.30 PM 
 

Present:   Councillors A Dodwell 
C Palmer 
D Bowater 
G Perham 
M Freeman (Chair) 
A Gray 
T Morris (substituting for J Silverstone) 
R Goodchild (substituting for S Owen) 

 
Also in attendance: M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 

S Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk 
A Hardy (Public Transport Manager, Central 
Bedfordshire Council) – joining remotely 

  
 
Members of the public: 2 
Members of the press 0 

 
297/P APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors J Silverstone 

(substituted by Councillor T Morris) and S Owen (substituted by R 
Goodchild).  
 

298/P DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 No pecuniary interests were declared and no dispensations were requested. 
 
Councillor Palmer declared a personal interest in application reference 
CB/22/01377/OUT as a member of the LB Society which had submitted 
comments on the application.  
 
Councillor D Bowater declared an interest as a substitute member of the 
Central Bedfordshire Development Management Committee.  
 
 

299/P QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 minutes per person; maximum 15 
minutes) 
 

 A member of the public and representative of the Roman Gate Action Group 
spoke in respect of the discussion on application CB/22/00607 (Land under 
pylon corridor on site 17a, adjacent Aurora Rise) at the previous meeting and 
advised the Committee that the consultation had now been extended until 18 
May. A question was raised about the potential transfer of amenity land to the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Planning & Transport Committee Meeting Wednesday, 11 May 2022 
 

 

Page 168 

town council. The Town Clerk advised this referred to parts of site 17a where 
development was complete and that the transfers were expected to take 
place soon, subject to sites being in an acceptable condition and subject to 
the legal process necessary to transfer the land ownership. 
 

300/P MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 (a) The Committee received the minutes of the Planning and Transport 
Committee meeting held on 20 April 2022. 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning and Transport Committee 
meeting held 20 April 2022 be approved as a correct record and were 
signed accordingly. 
 
(b) There were no updates from the previous meeting.  
 

301/P PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

 (a) The Committee considered planning applications received up until 5 
May 2022. 

 
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to the following applications, subject to CBC being 
satisfied that parking standards were met: 
 
 CB/22/01289   34 WESTON AVENUE 
 CB/22/01590   7 BISHOP CLOSE 
 CB/22/01267   66 RUSSELL WAY  
 
In respect of application CB/22/01267 (66 Russell Way) the town council 
would request consideration of a condition limiting use of the proposed 
gym to personal use only. 
 
The Committee discussed application reference CB/22/01483 (2 North 
Street) and expressed concerns regarding whether space standards were 
being adhered to, the potential for adverse impact on surrounding pre-
existing businesses, lack of car parking for two 2-bedroom dwellings (whilst 
recognising the town centre location) and lack of a listed building application 
when it was understood the building was grade 2 listed.   
 
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that 
objection be made to application reference CB/22/01483 (2 North Street) 
on the following grounds: 
 

- The habitable accommodation fails to meet current space 
standards 

- Despite it being a town centre location, the lack of off-street 
parking provision will do nothing to address what is already a 
chronic situation 

 

Page 2



Planning & Transport Committee Meeting Wednesday, 11 May 2022 
 

 

Page 169 

By way of an informative, Public Protection – Central Bedfordshire 
Council should be satisfied that the introduction of residential uses in 
this particular location will not compromise already established 
business uses to their detriment.  
  
The Committee discussed application reference CB/22/01377/OUT (Pledge 
Office Chairs, Mill Road) and acknowledged that the application was an 
improvement over the previous one due to the lower housing density, 
reduced impact on the green belt and the anticipated biodiversity net gain.  
The Committee also recognised the poor current state of the site and the 
need for the company to move to more suitable premises. However, 
concerns remained regarding the proposed access which could not be 
significantly improved due to being surrounded by existing houses, the 
potential for issues regarding drainage and flooding, the potential impact of 
water from the proposed attenuation lake flooding into the river Ouzel further 
upstream, the potential impact on the surrounding road network which was 
already problematic and the potentially overbearing nature of the proposed 2-
3 storey buildings on the riverside walk and Ouzel Valley Park.  The land had 
not been identified for development in the newly adopted Local Plan.  
 
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that 
objection be made to application reference CB/22/01377/OUT (Pledge 
Office Chairs, Mill Road) on the following grounds: 
 

- That the land is not identified for housing development in the 
Local Plan.  

- Concerns regarding flood risk and surface water drainage 
(and the impact of water from the proposed attenuation lake 
entering the river course further upstream). 

- Narrow vehicular access to the site with no prospect of 
significantly widening it, leading to concerns for safety as well 
as access/egress. 

- Concerns regarding the impact of significantly increased 
vehicle movements, especially at peak times, in an area with 
widespread traffic issues including limited traffic flow due to 
on street parking, lack of sufficient parking for Bassett Road 
GP surgery and high volume traffic movements relating to the 
Bassett Road clinic and Mary Bassett Lower School.  

- Concerns regarding the proximity of the sewerage pumping 
station to proposed housing units  

 
Should Central Bedfordshire Council be minded to approve the 
application, the Town Council would wish to ask for consideration of 
the following: 
 

- Early involvement in S106 negotiations, particularly given the 
Town Council ownership of the Ouzel Valley water meadows. 

- That the impact of the development in terms of increased 
pressures on services such as policing, health and education 
be taken into account in S106 agreements. 

Page 3



Planning & Transport Committee Meeting Wednesday, 11 May 2022 
 

 

Page 170 

- That the Green Wheel strategy be taken into account, with 
early liaison with the Town Council and the Ouzel Valley Park 
Steering Group in establishing matters such as landscaping, 
planting and biodiversity, potential improvements to the 
riverside walk area, improved walking and cycling access. 

- That specific mitigation measures be agreed to minimise the 
impact of additional traffic movements in an already 
congested area, such as additional no waiting restrictions.  

 
RESOLVED to recommend to Central Bedfordshire Council that no 
objection be made to the following planning applications:  
 

1. CB/22/01180     LAND ADJ TO HEATHLEA, SANDY LANE 
2. CB/22/01573     12 LEOPOLD ROAD, LINSLADE 
3. CB/22/01624     106 BIDEFORD GREEN 
4. CB/22/01707/REG3     RUSHMERE PARK ACADEMY 
5. CB/22/01346      99 BIDEFORD GREEN 

 
TREES 
 

1.    CB/TRE/22/00161 41 TAYLORS RIDE 
2.    CB/TRE/22/00224     TIMBER LODGE PLANTATION ROAD 
3.    CB/TRE/22/00192  58 REDWOOD GLADE 

 
(b) The Committee received a report regarding the outcomes of 

applications to which it had recommended objection in the period 
September 2021 – April 2022. 

 
RESOLVED to note the report.  
 
 

302/P TRANSPORT MATTERS 
 

 a) By invitation, Adrian Hardy, Public Transport Manager at Central 
Bedfordshire Council attended the meeting. The committee was advised that 
all local authorities had been required to submit a Bus Service Improvement 
Plan to the Department of Transport in Autumn 2021 and that Central 
Bedfordshire Council had been notified of an indicative award of £3.7m 
funding. £2.2m of this was for capital projects and £1.5m for revenue 
projects. Initiatives were expected to include investment into passenger 
waiting and information facilities such as bus shelters and provision of real 
time bus information, as well as possible traffic signal enhancements to give 
buses priority. It was hoped that service enhancements would include the 
extension of some routes for longer hours, i.e. into the evening and that a 
system for cheaper and simpler fares across the area could be developed. 
This might include a multi-service ticket with zoned areas as well as daily, 
weekly or monthly tickets.   
 
Central Bedfordshire Council had now put forward more detailed proposals to 
the Department of Transport and awaited confirmation that the proposed 

Page 4



Planning & Transport Committee Meeting Wednesday, 11 May 2022 
 

 

Page 171 

schemes could go ahead.  
 
The committee was advised that the local authority was working with one of 
the developers of the Leighton Buzzard eastern urban extension to review 
public transport across the whole town. It was intended that S106 developer 
contributions be used to make changes to services to include the new 
developments and to support services at this early stage until there were 
sufficient numbers of residents to make services commercially sustainable. 
The emphasis would be on getting the services right before considering 
investment into vehicles.   
 
Further to the discussion at Council on 4 April 2022, Mr Hardy was asked 
about bus user/public transport user groups. There were some groups in 
existence for specific areas and these were independent. However, there 
was an aspiration to create a pan-Bedfordshire passenger advisory group so 
there was potential for local groups to feed into this.  The larger group would 
be run in conjunction with Luton and Bedford Borough councils and would 
help raise awareness of any issues as well as getting feedback from bus 
users on the Bus Service Improvement Plan.  
 
Mr Hardy also advised that an enhanced partnership was being set up with 
the three local authorities and the main bus operators, but that there was 
opportunity for other stakeholders to feed in views. A bus user group could 
be considered a stakeholder along with organisations such as health 
authorities and colleges.  
 
The committee was advised that anyone could set up a bus user group, 
which should be an independent voice although Central Bedfordshire Council 
was happy to help or support where possible. It was felt that the group would 
need to feel heard and that it was making a difference to encourage people 
to participate. The question was asked as to why the bus companies 
themselves were not seeking user feedback more pro-actively given that they 
had responsibility for commercial bus routes (not the local authority).  
 
Mr Hardy was thanked for attending the meeting and for the information. 
 
RESOLVED for the Chair of the Committee and the Town Clerk to meet 
with the Transport Officer of the LB Society to consider next steps in 
relation to bus users and to report back to a future meeting of the 
committee.  
 
b) The committee noted that there was no update further to the 
correspondence sent to Councillor I Dalgarno of Central Bedfordshire 
Council on 14 April 2022 in respect of the A505 bypass safety review. 
 
c) The committee noted that there was no update further to the 
correspondence sent to Councillor I Dalgarno of Central Bedfordshire 
Council on 29 April 2022 in respect of Leighton Buzzard High Street. 
 
There were no further transport matters for consideration 

Page 5



Planning & Transport Committee Meeting Wednesday, 11 May 2022 
 

 

Page 172 

 
303/P STREET NAMING 

 
 a) The Committee noted information from Central Bedfordshire Building 

Control in support of a theme of the Leighton Buzzard Narrow Gauge 
Railway for street naming on Chamberlains Barn phase 3 (land north of 
Vandyke Road). 

 
RESOLVED to submit the following prefixes to Central Bedfordshire 
Council and for CBC or the developer to append the appropriate 
suffixes: Feanor, Trotter, Clayton, Baldwin, Gault, Silversand, Keef, 
Harris, Arnold, Garside.  
 
b) The Committee received a request from Central Bedfordshire Building 
Control in respect of street naming on Clipstone Park phase 3. It was noted 
that scientist names would be used on the part of the site currently outside 
the parish boundary. The Committee agreed the remaining scientist names 
could be used with the suggested addition of Somerville.  
 
RESOLVED to support the use of the following prefixes and for CBC or 
the developer to append the appropriate suffixes: Bessemer, Chadwick, 
Cockcroft, Davy, Edison, Faraday, Fleming, Franklin, Gardner, Henry, 
Hilbert, Hornby, Hubble, Kelper, Kinsey, Lawrence, Lovelace, Maxwell, 
Mendel, Pascal, Pasteur, Priestley, Showmaker, Somerville, Teller, 
Wheeler, Wilkins and Wright. 
 

304/P INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 The Committee received correspondence from Central Bedfordshire Council 
dated 14 April 2022 in respect of an appeal on land at Town Bridge Mill, 
Leighton Road, Linslade. 
 
RESOLVED to note the information.    
 

 
 

The meeting closed at 9.19 pm.  
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 11 MAY 2022.  
 
 
 
 
Chair                                              8 JUNE 2022   

Page 6



PLANNING & TRANSPORT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2022. 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED UP 27 MAY  2022 
All applications are FULL applications unless marked otherwise 

 
1. CB/22/01694   65 CARINA DRIVE 
Single and two storey side extension. 
 
2. CB/22/01628   77 HIMLEY GREEN, LINSLADE 
Two storey side and single storey rear extension 
 
3. CB/22/01491   LAND REAR OF 72 NORTH ST AND 2 
BEDFORD STREET  
Conversion and extension of 72 North Street to 6 no. 1 bedroom flats. 
Conversion of 2 Bedford Street to 2 no. 2 bedroom flats. Erection of 
independent block of 7 no. 1 bedroom flats and 5 no. 2 bedroom flats. 
Associated parking, paths, fences and relocated vehicular access. 
Demolition of workshop at 2 Bedford Street. 
 
4. CB/22/01724   52 SOUTHCOURT AVENUE, LINSLADE 
Single storey rear extension. 
 
5. CB/22/01793   303 HEATH ROAD 
Conversion of integral garage and erection of detached double garage 
 
6. CB/22/01799   46 ASHWELL STREET 
Single storey wrap around side and rear extension. 
 
7. CB/22/01810   106 BIDEFORD GREEN, LINSLADE 
First floor side extension 
 
8. CB/22/01610   15 NORTH STREET 
Change of use from class E to Sui-Generis (Hot food take away) 
 
9. CB/22/01944   82 DERWENT ROAD, LINSLADE 
Single storey rear extension and part garage conversion 
 

10. CB/22/01702   25 SPRINGFIELD ROAD, LINSLADE 
Proposed side return extension to the rear of the house and minor 
alterations to the front basement window and rear ground floor window 

 
11. CB/22/01697   49 GARDEN HEDGE 
Dropping the kerb to access the driveway. 

 
12. CB/22/01976                      179 COTEFIELD DRIVE 

Conversion of garage and erection of single storey front extension. 
 

13. CB/22/01689   33 THE PADDOCKS, LINSLADE 
Single storey rear extension, side and front extension.  

 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



PLANNING & TRANSPORT COMMITTEE  8 JUNE 2022. 

 
14. CB/21/04923   84 WILLOW BANK WALK 
Change of use from amenity land to residential garden land, as well as the 
removal of old fencing and hedge and replace with new fencing close to the 
property boundary.  

 
15. CB/22/01981   19 GARDEN HEDGE 
Single storey side extension to form motorbike and garden store.  

 
16. CB/22/01941/RM  CLIPSTONE PARK, LAND SOUTH OF  

VANDYKE ROAD AND NORTH OF 
STANBRIDGE ROAD 

Approval of substation 2, phase 3 including access, layout and scale.  
 
 

VOC 
 

1. CB/22/01376/VOC  114 CLARENCE ROAD 
Variation of condition number 2 of planning permission 
CB/21/00434/FULL (Construction of a detached dwelling and new vehicle 
access to Roosevelt Avenue) The developer decided to retain the 
existing garage 
 

 
 
 

Page 8



Cycle Tracks to LTN1-20 standard on Town Council owned land 

Project Description Length/metres Cost Priority 

Cycle 
strategy 
map Notes 

Astral Park Nicolson Drive to pavilion 103 £16K to £21K Medium 4   

Linslade Rec 

Widen path to station & 
remodel to avoid blind 
corner 142 £22K to £29K High 1 PRoW FP 

Lovent Drive 
cyclepath 

Widen to LTN1/20 
standard 181 £28K to £37K Medium 1 

Path that runs from South St to the 
Morissons fence. 

Pages Field to 
Turnham Drive   294 £75K to £96K Medium 4 

Fields in Trust field. 
Field is used for football. 

Parsons Close 

Widen diagonal path 
(Pulford Rd to Grove 
Road) & make shared 
use 250 £38K to £51K High 1 PRoW FP 

Vandyke Road 
to Kiteleys 
Green 

Path along SW side of 
field parallel to cemetery 
road 256 £65K to £83K Medium 6   

Watermeadows: 
cattle grids 

Retrofit flat plates for 
easier access. N/A £5K High 3 

Improve access for mobility scooters, 
wheelchairs, buggies etc 

Watermeadows: 
GU canal to 
footbridge 

Increase width of access 
to canal & create new 
path to footbridge 250 £64K to £81K High 3   

Watermeadows: 
Ouzel 
footbridge Widen to 3m. 14 

 
£20K High 3 

Bridge was built in 2001 & is thus nearly at 
its design life. Good opportunity to improve. 
Abutments were built for a wider bridge but 
funds would not stretch to a wider deck at the 
time. 
The bridge deck is 1m wide and 14 m long. 
The ramp is 3m wide reflecting the original 
design width. 

 

 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7



Cycle parking 

Project Description Cost Priority Notes 

Improve 
location 

Linslade 
Memorial 
Playing 
Fields     

Closer to pavilion, not in the car 
park 

 

Complementary measures 

Description Cost Priority Notes 

LLTC to allow use of facilities behind White House   Medium   

LLTC to allow CBC to use facilities behind White 
House   High   

    High   

    Medium   

Train LLTC Planning Committee on things to look 
for in planning applications to support cycling   High   

 

Policy 

Project Description Priority Notes 

Support for new & existing contraflows 

Existing: Hartwell Grove, Hockliffe Street, Church 
Road 
New: Leopold Road High   

Removing rat runs through filtered 
permeability   High   

Support for more cycle parking in High St in 
the Town Centre Strategy Especially between the Markey Cross & Oxfam High   

 

P
age 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning and Transport Committee             

 
Date: 8 June 2022 
 
Title: Bus Users   

 
Purpose of the Report: To consider the most appropriate way the Town 

Council can encourage the creation of a stand-alone 
bus user group to represent local views on issues 
concerning public transport which in turn would be fed 
into the pan-Bedfordshire user group which includes 
representation from Local Authorities other user 
groups as well as public transport providers.  

 
Contact Officer:                Mark Saccoccio - Town Clerk 
    
 

Corporate 
Objective/s 

 To continue to support a thriving, vital and successful 
town through a town planning partnership with Central 
Bedfordshire Council and initiatives including 
management of the street market, support for local 
businesses, town and community promotions, and 
town centre enhancements.  

Implications:   

Financial No  Anticipated that any user group created would be 
entirely self-governing and self-run. 

Operational/Service 
delivery 

No  Anticipated that any user group created would be 
entirely self-governing and self-run. The town council 
to offer the use of its meeting rooms should the group 
wish to meet here,  

 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

Should the Planning and Transport Committee be minded:- 
 
1.1 To note the report: 

 
1.2 To agree to and encourage the creation of a stand-alone bus user group 

whose purpose would be to raise local issues with the pan-Bedfordshire 
user group which includes representation from Local Authorities other 
user groups as well as public transport providers. 
 

1.3 To work with the Leighton Buzzard Society Transport Officer and up to 3 
councillors to encourage and create a stand-alone bus user group.  
 

Page 11



  

Page 2 of 3   

 

1.4 That the Town Clerk liaises with the Central Bedfordshire Council Public 
Transport Manager to understand what support it can offer in the 
encouragement and creation of local user groups as well as the frequency 
of the pan-Bedfordshire forum meetings. 

 
1.5 To use town council social media platforms as well as its bi-monthly parish 

magazine to raise awareness and encourage bus users to participate in the 
creation and thereafter participation of a bus user group.    

 
 
2 BACKGROUND  

 
 
2.1 At its meeting held 25th April 2022, Council resolved: “To receive suggestions 

from the Town Clerk regarding means of regular consultation about local bus 
services”.  
 

2.2 To this end and by invitation, the Public Transport Manager – Central 
Bedfordshire Council attended the Planning and Transport Committee meeting 
held 11th May 2022. Its purpose, to better understand the mechanisms the local 
authority has in place to engage with public transport user groups at a parish 
level.  
 

2.3 The Public Transport Manager confirmed that there was an aspiration to create 
a pan-Bedfordshire passenger advisory group. The pan-Bedfordshire Group 
would be run in conjunction with Luton and Bedford Borough Councils. Its 
purpose to raise awareness as to bus service issues directly with the bus 
operators as well as with the local authority in its statutory public transport 
capacity.  
 

2.4 Whilst this user group would work at a strategic level, it was clear that the 
grassroot views and opinions would be welcomed. The idea of creating a local 
user group who would then feed into the strategic pan Bedfordshire forum was 
also welcomed.  
 

2.5 Following from the discussion with The Public Transport Manager, the Planning 
and Transport Committee resolved for the Chair of the Committee and the Town 
Clerk to meet with the Transport Officer of the LB Society to consider next steps 
in relation to bus users and to report back to a future meeting of the committee.  

 
2.6 Said meeting took place on Thursday 19th May. It was suggested that the most 

appropriate way of garnering local opinion was through the creation of a bus user 
group. In his presentation, the CBC Public Transport Manager stressed that for 
the bus user group to have credence, it should be led by bus users whose 
experiences would then feed into pan-Bedfordshire passenger advisory group 
forum.  It was anticipated that once established, the local bus user group would 
nominate a representative who would then sit on the strategic pan-Bedfordshire 
passenger advisory group forum.  
 

2.7  Whilst the town council has no responsibility (statutory or otherwise) for the 
delivery of bus services, the town council would encourage the creation of a bus 

Page 12



  

Page 3 of 3   

 

user group through awareness raising (social media platforms, press release and 
its bi-monthly newsletter). The expectation being that the bus user group would 
be entirely self-governing and self-run being responsible for its own 
administrative functions for example. What support the Local Authority can 
provide is a matter for further discussion as set out at recommendation 1.4.  
 

2.8 To support the group, the town council would be able to offer the use of meeting 
rooms should the group decide, they would wish to meet here. It may well be that 
several councillors may choose to join the group in its early stages to provide 
momentum.  

 
 

 
3 NEXT STEPS 

 
3.1 Should the Planning and Transport Committee support the bus user group 

principle, a further conversation with the Local Authority is advised. Its purpose 
to understand what support it could offer in the formation of a user group, the 
frequency of pan-Bedfordshire user group meetings. These tasks could be 
delegated to officers to report back to this committee in due course.   
 

 
 

 
End.  
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Development in the Chiltern Beechwoods 
Special Area of Conservation Zone of 
Influence 
We've recently received notification from Natural England 
(PDF) about damage to the Chilterns Beechwoods Special Area 
of Conservation (SAC) resulting from high visitor numbers. 

The SAC is an internationally recognised designation with 
habitats and species of significant ecological importance. Due 
to its status, the SAC has legal protection. 

An ecology report undertaken on behalf of Dacorum Borough 
Council, has identified that additional residential development 
within and around the SAC will lead to more visitors and an 
increase in adverse activities such as trampling, mountain 
biking and dog fouling. 

The report reveals action is needed to help protect the SAC and 
mitigate any adverse impact of development. 

Whilst the Beechwoods SAC is outside of Central Bedfordshire, 
a Zone of Influence (PDF) has been identified encompassing 
the areas that potentially impact the SAC (where visitors come 
from). The map shows the affected area, which includes a 
significant part of Central Bedfordshire. 

How these restrictions could affect your planning 
application 

This does not mean development can’t take place, but that it 
must mitigate any adverse impacts on the SAC, and any 
mitigation strategy must be agreed by Natural England.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 8

https://centralbedfordshire.box.com/s/1et2myqy4e75aiq2kkt0bxwf24068tx7
https://centralbedfordshire.box.com/s/1et2myqy4e75aiq2kkt0bxwf24068tx7
https://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/planning-development/planning-strategic-planning/new-single-local-plan/chilterns-beechwoods-special-area-of-conservation
https://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/planning-development/planning-strategic-planning/new-single-local-plan/chilterns-beechwoods-special-area-of-conservation
https://centralbedfordshire.box.com/s/tkcyyt7kl7v01rcfnoylzezuc59eg91y


We're working with Natural England, other affected authorities 
and the National Trust (the site owners) to develop a strategic 
mitigation solution. Officers are also looking at opportunities for 
an interim mitigation solution in the shorter term. 

The affected authorities and Natural England are holding 
monthly partnership and fortnightly working group meetings to 
discuss mitigation solutions. Footprint Ecology has been 
commissioned to produce a supplementary planning document 
(SPD) on mitigation measures (strategic access management 
and monitoring, or SAMM), with the expectation of having a first 
draft ready in early June. 

We're investigating options for suitable alternative natural green 
space both at new developments (working with developers) and 
other more strategic options. 

The strategic mitigation strategy will be agreed upon and put in 
place as soon as possible. However, until the interim solutions 
and ultimately the mitigation strategy are in place, additional 
checks on planning applications will be needed to ensure these 
sites remain protected. As such, there may be delays to some 
planning application decisions and the issuing of decision 
notices, whilst this work is being progressed.  

We will seek to minimise the disruption as much as possible. 
We'll continue to receive and process all planning applications 
in the normal way but will need to delay issuing decisions on the 
affected applications until the mitigation strategy is in place. 
Once this is in place, we will be in a position to meet its legal 
obligations and issue decisions on the affected planning 
applications. 

 

Page 16



What happens next? 

We will carry out an initial screening assessment of your 
application. This helps us decide if the development is likely to 
have a significant effect on the Chiltern Beeches Special Area 
of Conservation. The assessment will consider the nature, scale 
and location of the development and we will carry out any 
relevant reviews. 

The new restrictions will affect applications: 

 for full planning permission 
 for outline planning permission 
 for reserved matters 
 for prior approval / permitted development rights 
 that are subject to appeal 
 under section 73 of The Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 (as amended) 
 where there is a resolution to grant planning permission 

but where a formal decision has not been issued (e.g. 
subject to the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement) 

The new restrictions will also affect some discharge of condition 
applications that enable the development to proceed (e.g. a pre-
commencement condition regarding access). 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	6 PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	7 TRANSPORT MATTERS
	Bus User Group

	8 INFORMATION ITEMS

